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AGENDA  
 

1.  Call to Order  
Chairman Vaughn Hartung called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.  
 

2.  Roll Call  
Present:  Chairman Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner Dawn Gibbons, Commissioner  R.  David 
Groover, Deputy Commissioner David Pasternak,  Administrative Attorney  Yoneet Wilburn, 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Deputy Attorney General  
Radhika Kunnel, Chief of Enforcement John Foster  
 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance  
Commissioner Gibbons  led  a recital of the pledge.  
 

4.  Public Comment   
Tony Clark, 24/7 Limousines, Manny Racinos, Limofi, Marin Popov, MP Limousine, David 
Andifer, Limofi, Donielle Faucett, PSS, and Damir Akmeyev, Sky Limo, questioned the insurance  
coverage requirements  for carriers and differences between carriers and TNC’s.   Ash Demisse,  
Winner Limousine, stated there are gypsy operators using his fleet numbers, CPCN, and that his  
drivers are being threatened by the gypsy operators.  He detailed his concerns and stated he has  
contacted his congressman.  He also mentioned the differences in insurance coverage 
requirements and that he has had 3 or 4 drivers quit, go out and rent a car and run gypsy.  
Several others mentioned the differences in insurance coverage requirements between  carriers 
and TNC’s and the sophistication of the gypsy operators so they can avoid NTA enforcement.  
Drew Ribar, Reno, offered a statement regarding regulatory issues and NTA compliance with 
regulation. 
 

5.  Approval of Agenda  

https://businessnv2.webex.com/


Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested Items 73, 87, 88, 91, 107 and 115 be removed  
from consideration.   
Motion by Gibbons, Second Groover Approved as  modified 3-0 
 

6.  Approval of the Minutes of the  May 9, 2024, Special Session   
Motion by Gibbons, Second Groover   Approved 3-0 
 

7.  Approval of the Minutes of the May 30, 2024, Agenda Meeting   
Motion by Gibbons, Second Groover   Approved 3-0 
 

8.  Briefings from the Commissioners  
Commissioner Groover offered congratulations to Adam Teti, who is  going to the  TA. Offered  
his congratulations to Paul Servello on his retirement and welcome Garrett Hammack.  He also 
welcomed Amber Haggard to the Las Vegas staff.  Chairman Hartung thanked Adam Teti for his  
service to the Agency and wished him luck in his new position.  He requested Chief Foster  
develop a plan for the  enforcement of gypsy operators. He also mentioned the golf tournament  
currently being held in Reno.        
 

9.  Briefing from the Deputy Commissioner  
Deputy Commissioner Pasternak welcomed Amber Haggard to the Las Vegas staff.  He stated  
the Agency will no longer  be mailing the notice of Agenda and asked that  those interested in 
receiving notice please submit email addresses.  Mr. Pasternak stated the  update to hearing 
room had been completed.  
 

10.  Report of Legal Counsel  
Deputy Attorney General Kunnel indicated nothing new to report.    
 

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS  
Items 11 through 57, with the exception of Item 12, 35 and 43, were considered collectively.    
Motion by Groover, Second Gibbons Approved 3-0 

 
11.  Citation 21465  issued to Executive Towing & Recovery, LLC for a violation of  NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 

CFR 391.41/51 - (DG)   
 

12.  Citations 21469, 21470 and 21471  issued to Salt Flats Towing for violations of NAC 706.31,  
NAC 706.381, NAC 706.360, NAC 706.2473, NAC 706.2473 and NRS 706.398(1)(b) - (DG)   
Chairman Hartung detailed the  reasoning for reviewing the Order  and requested an Order  to Show Cause. 
Commissioner Groover stated he had asked former Administrative Attorney Erikson to verify refunds and 
also receipt of  an affidavit.  Howard Woods, Compliance Auditor, stated the affidavit was submitted  May  
2024. He also indicated proof of refund has been sporadic. Commissioner Gibbons offered that  the carrier  
has worked to get  all  the  requirements completed.  Chairman Hartung restated the opinion of  the need for 
an OSC.  James Kent, Esq. stated the  restitution was completely timely, that  the  carrier has hired new  
personnel that has worked very  hard to come into compliance.   
Motion by Hartung to table  the Order Second Gibbons Approved 3-0  
Motion by Hartung to issue an Order  to Show Cause    Second Groover  Approved 2-1 Gibbons opposed  

 
13.  Citation 22868  issued to Bahir Shirzad for violation of NRS 706.386 - (DG)   

 
14.  Citation 23333 issued to Executive Towing & Recovery, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.2473 

ref. 49 CFR 382.103 and NRS 706.398 - (DG)  
 

15.  Citations 24154, 24155, 24156, 24157 and 24158 issued to T1 Transportation for  violations  of NAC  
706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 396.21 (23 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 396.3 (22 counts) NAC 706.381 (46 



counts), NAC 706.203 (21 counts), NAC 706.191 (20 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.51, NAC  
706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11 (7 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.65 and NRS 706.462 - (DG)   

 
16.  Citation 24238 and  Impound I-5029  The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered 

to and Citation 24238 issued to Pablo Lindow/702 Moving for violations of NRS  706.386 and NRS  
706.758 - (DG)   

 
17.  Citations 24436 and 24437  issued to Larry Hieu Nguyen for violations  of NRS 706A.280 and NRS  

706.386 - (DG)   
 

18.  Citation 24842 and  Impound I-5014 and I-5015  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of vehicles  
registered to and Citation 24842 issued to Justin Estes  for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 - 
(DG)   

 
19.  Citation 25033 and  Impound I-5103  The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered 

to and Citation 25033 issued to Michael Anthony Jenkins/MTEA Transport, LLC  for violation of NRS  
706.386 - (DG)   

 
20.  Citation 25035  issued to William Thomas  Jordan/Willpower  Movers  for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758 - (DG)   
 

21.  Impound I-4324  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Samsoor  
Shirzad - (DG)   

 
22.  Impound I-4614  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Christopher Trimm  

- (DG)   
 

23.  Impound I-4615  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company  
of Arizona  - (DG)   

 
24.  Impound I-4655  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Enterprise Rent A  

Car  - (DG)   
 

25.  Impound I-4657  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company  
of Arizona  - (DG)   

 
26.  Impound I-4778  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to William Garcell  

Almenarez - (DG)   
 

27.  Impound I-4812  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Henok 
Gebremedhin - (DG)   

 
28.  Impound I-5043  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Trinh Thi Tuyet  

Nguyen - (DG)   
 

29.  Impound I-5087  the impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to North Texas Limo, 
LLC- (DG)   

 
30.  Impound I-5126  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company  

of Arizona  - (DG)   
 

31.  Impound I-5137  the impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Hertz Vehicles, 
LLC  - (DG)   

 
32.  Citation 21461  issued to Anthony Britton for a violation of NAC 706.13775.1 (45 counts)  - (RDG)   

 



33.  Citations 22219, 22222 and 22223  issued to T1 Transportation for violations of  NAC 706.2473 ref 49  
CFR 396.21 (12 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref  49 CFR 396.3 (11 counts), NAC 706.381 (60 counts), NAC  
706.191 (39 counts)  and NAC 706.203 (20 counts)  - (RDG)   

 
34.  Citation 22864 and  Impound I-4444  The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered 

to and Citation 22864 issued to Christopher Kolafa for  violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 - 
(RDG)   

 
35.  Citations 22881, 22953 and 22954  issued to T1 Transportation for violations of  NAC 706.381 (39 counts), 

NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 396.21 (64 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref  49 CFR 396.3 (71 counts), NAC  
706.191 (178 counts)  and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.65 - (RDG)   
Commissioner Groover recommended a reduction in the fine amounts to $100 per count, with a  total of 

206 counts,  for  a total fine  of $20,600 and offered a motion to amend the Order  to reflect  the  same.  Second 
by Gibbons  
Approved 3-0  

 
36.  Citation 23609  issued to Gezae Reda  for violations of  NRS 706.329 and NRS 706.1378 - (RDG)   

 
37.  Citation 24269  issued to Brian Lim for violation of NRS 706.386 - (RDG)   

 
38.  Citation 24297 and  Impound I-4850  The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered 

to and Citation 24297 issued to Eduardo Gonzalez-Castaneda for violation of NRS 706.386 - (RDG)   
 

39.  Citations 23568 and 24552  issued to Mahteme Zewdie for violation of NRS 706.728, NRS 706.511 and 
NRS 706.194 - (RDG)   

 
40.  Citations 24568 and 24569  issued to Dayron Cervantes Gonzalez for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS  

706A.280 - (RDG)   
 

41.  Citation 25103  issued to Jonatan Badillo for a  violation of NRS 706.386 - (RDG)   
 

42.  Citations 25155 and 25156  issued to Carlos Ochoa-Avila for violations of NRS 706A.280 and NRS  
706.386 - (RDG)   
 

43.  Citation 24095, 24096 and 24097  issued to Mundi Vegas, LLC d/b/a Mundi Transportation for violations  
of NAC 706.203, NAC 706.229, NAC 706.360, NAC  706.381 and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.51 - 
(RDG)   
Brent Carson, Esq appeared on behalf of  Mundi  Vegas, LLC, and stated he  did not agree with the Order  as  
written and gave several  reasons.  Commissioner Groover questioned proper service  and that  there is  a 
question who the actual Respondent  is. Deputy Attorney General Kunnel stated the position that service  to 
the correct Respondent was proper.  Administrative Attorney Wilburn indicated the Hearing Officer felt  the 
citations were  issued to the  wrong Respondent and in doing so, these  citations  could possibly  be void. She  
indicated the Hearing Officer feels there is a missing party to  the citations and  that the request for an  
Order to Show Cause was to clarify the responsible parties.   Chief Foster stated he was not clear if  
Enforcement had  spoken to  the drivers to determine who they worked for.  Administrative  Attorney  Wilburn 
suggested tabling the Order to facilitate  further  investigation into ownership,  the  responsibility for the 
citations and possibly  hold the application hearing  after clarification.  Deputy Attorney Kunnel  suggested a 
rehearing of  the  citations.  A discussion ensued with regard to resetting the hearing.   
Motion by Groover to reset  citations for  a hearing    
Second Gibbons Approved 3-0  
 

44.  Impound I-4239  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to EAN Holdings, 
LLC  - (RDG)   

 
45.  Impound I-5149  The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Pamela Tenorio - 

(RDG)   



 
46.  Citation 19747, 19748 and Impound  I-3845 The  impoundment  pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and Citation 19747 and 19748 issued to Tafara Tesama for violation of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706A.280 - (GA)   

 
47.  Citation 23911  issued to Paul  M. Sprada d/b/a AA Buffalo One Towing for  violation of NRS 706.203(a) - 

(GA)   
 

48.  Citation 24594 and  Impound I-4528 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered 
to and Citation 24594 issued to Ashenafi Ayalew Dagne for violation of NRS 706.386 - (GA)   

 
49.  Citation 21504  issued to Sarah Sojo, for violation of  NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758  

 
50.  Citation 21507  issued to Anthony Cavallaro for  a violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758  

 
51.  Citation 21508  issued to Marin Bochis  for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11  

 
52.  Citation 21509  issued to Northshore Towing for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11  

 
53.  Citation 21514  issued to Lyle Richards  for  violation of NAC 706.376.11 and NAC 706.3747.4  

 
54.  Citation 23339  issued to Brayden Fiorillo for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758  

 
55.  Citation 24099  issued to Mai Niv Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a King’s Towing for violation of NAC  

706.4277(2)(b)   
 

56.  Citation 24713  issued to Ashley’s Towing, Inc. for a violation of NRS 706.4275(2)   
 

57.  Citation 25102  issued to Yao Xie  for  violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758  
 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND  
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE  

Items 58 through 63 were considered collectively.  
Motion by Gibbons      Second  Groover   Approved 3-0 
 

58.  Docket 24-01038 The Application of A-Ray Towing, LLC d/b/a 1Byone Towing  for a  certificate of  
public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow  car vehicle within the  
State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   
Alan Ford appeared on behalf of  the Applicant.   
 

59.  Docket 24-02014 The Application of San Judas, LLC  d/b/a San Judas Towing for a  certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
60.  Docket 24-02015 The Application of Desert Bighorn Towing, LLC for a  certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
61.  Docket 24-02039 The Application of Cerritos Towing, LLC d/b/a Cerritos Towing for  a  certificate of  

public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow  car vehicle within the  
State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
62.  Docket 24-03006 The Application of DC Squared LTD d/b/a Maverick Towing for a  certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow  car  service by  tow car vehicle within  the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (DG)   
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63.  Docket 24-03034 The Application of Exquisite Towing Roadside Assistance, LLC for a  certificate of  

public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow  car vehicle within the  
State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   
Herman Williams appeared on behalf of the Applicant.   

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND  
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE  

Items 64 through 67 were considered collectively  
Motion by Gibbons   Second Groover    Approved 3-0 

 
64.  Docket 24-01024 The Application of Q Travel, LLC d/b/a Q Transit  for  a certificate of public  

convenience and necessity to provide  charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff  investigation 
concluded. (RDG)   

 
65.  Docket 24-02026 The Application of LP Limousine, LLC d/b/a LP Limousine for  a certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff  investigation 
concluded. (DG)   

 
66.  Docket 24-02028 The Application of  Black Tie, LLC d/b/a Black Tie for  a certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff  investigation 
concluded. (DG)   

 
67.  Docket 24-03033 The Application of  Eastern Transportation, LLC d/b/a ETS for  a certificate of  public 

convenience and necessity to provide  charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff  investigation 
concluded. (RDG)   

 
FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS  

Items 68 through 72 were considered collectively.  
Motion by Groover   Second Gibbons    Approved 3-0 
 

68.  Docket 24-05016 The Application of Yellow Cab of Reno, Inc., d/b/a Star Taxi, Deluxe Taxi. and 
Yellow Cab for final approval of a  tariff  rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1014, Sub 
2. Staff  investigation concluded.  

 
69.  Docket 24-05017 The Application of Roy L. Street d/b/a Capitol Cab Company for final approval of a  

tariff rate modification for  services conducted under CPCN 2445, Sub 4.  Staff  investigation concluded.  
 

70.  Docket 24-05018 The Application of Reno Cab Company, Inc., d/b/a Reno-Sparks Cab Company for  
final approval  of a tariff  rate modification for  services  conducted under CPCN 1025, Sub 1.  Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 
71.  Docket 24-05019 The Application of All  My Sons Moving and Storage of Las Vegas, LLC for  final  

approval  of a  tariff  rate  modification for services conducted under CPCN 3256, Sub 2.  Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 
72.  Docket 24-05043 The Application of C.H. Destinations, Inc. d/b/a CHD Limousine for approval of a  

tariff rate modification for  services conducted under CPCN 1120.  Staff investigation concluded.  
 

73.  Docket 24-06001 The Application of Stephen B. Perry d/b/a Salt Flats Towing for  approval  of a  tariff  
rate modification for services conducted under CPCN  7312.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

74.  Docket 23-08008 - B The  Application of Reno Medical Transport, LLC d/b/a GMTCARE for  final  
approval  of a  tariff  rate  modification for services conducted under CPCN 1143.  Staff investigation 
concluded. Tabled from prior general session.  



Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of Reno Medical Transport and requested the item be  
tabled to the August General Session.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock  restated staff did not  
support the request and enumerated several reasons.   
Motion by Groover to deny the tariff rate modification.   
Brent Carson, Esq. offered a lengthy statement detailing the prior action of the Authority, 
stating they would hold a workshop for the NEMT community.   
Second by Hartung  Approved 3-0  
 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS  
 

75.  Docket 24-02006 The Application of  WMT Enterprises, LLC d/b/a  WMT  Medical Transportation for  
final approval of a contract carrier permit within the State of Nevada under  a contract with Fundamental 
Clinical and Operational Services, LLC.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   
James Kent, Esq. appeared  on behalf  of  the Applicant.  
Motion by Groover   Second Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 

REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE  
Items 76 through 86 were considered collectively.  
Motion by Groover    Second Gibbons    Approved 3-0 
 

76.  Docket 24-05031 The temporary discontinuance  from January 31, 2024, through July 31, 2024, of  service  
provided Sanchez Family LLC d/b/a PST Towing under CPCN 7534, and if denied, Staff’s  
recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as  to why the CPCN should not be  revoked. This  
requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz  Babcock indicated the retroactive approval was due  to a staff  error.   
 

77.  Docket 24-05045 The  temporary discontinuance from  May 22, 2024, through November 22, 2024, of  
service provided Planell Towing Corporation under CPCN 7362, and if  denied, Staff’s recommendation to 
issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. This requires retroactive  
approval. Staff  investigation concluded.  

 
78.  Docket 24-05046 The  temporary discontinuance from  May 24, 2024, through November 24, 2024, of  

service provided Right Away Towing, LLC under CPCN 7528, and if  denied, Staff’s recommendation to 
issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff  investigation concluded.  

 
79.  Docket 24-05047 The  temporary discontinuance from  May 23, 2024, through November 1, 2024, of  

service provided Las Vegas Event Planners, LLC d/b/a  A List Trans under CPCN  2186.2, and if denied, 
Staff’s recommendation to  issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 
80.  Docket 24-05048 The  temporary discontinuance from  May 17, 2024, through November 17, 2024, of  

service provided Desert Run, LLC under CPCN 2278, and if denied, Staff’s  recommendation to issue an 
Order  to Show Cause  as  to why the CPCN should not  be revoked. This requires  retroactive approval. Staff  
investigation concluded.  
 

81.  Docket 24-05051 The  temporary discontinuance from  June 6, 2024, through December 6, 2024, of service  
provided Elko Taxi Service, Inc. under CPCN 1046.2, and if denied, Staff’s  recommendation to issue an 
Order to Show  Cause as to why the  CPCN  should not be  revoked. Staff investigation concluded.  

 
82.  Docket 24-06004 The  temporary discontinuance from  June 7, 2024, through November 7, 2024, of service  

provided VS  Western Ventures, LLC  d/b/a  Wild, Weird & Wonderful Vegas Tours under CPCN 1147, and 
if denied, Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order  to  Show Cause as to why the  CPCN should not be  
revoked. Staff investigation concluded.   

 



83.  Docket 24-06005 The  temporary discontinuance from  June 6, 2024, through July 6, 2024, of service  
provided Knox Transportation, LLC d/b/a Royal Crown Transportation under CPCN 2285, and if  denied, 
Staff’s recommendation to  issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 
84.  Docket 24-06006 The  temporary discontinuance from  June 3, 2024, through November 3, 2024, of service  

provided Knock Out Transport, LLC  d/b/a Knock Out Transport under CPCN 7602, and if denied, Staff’s  
recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as  to why the CPCN should not be  revoked. This  
requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.  

 
85.  Docket 24-06013 The  temporary discontinuance from  June 16, 2024, through December 15, 2024, of  

service provided Sunshine  Travel, Inc. under CPCN 2144.2, and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to 
issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. This requires retroactive  
approval. Staff  investigation concluded.  

 
86.  Docket 24-06018 The  temporary discontinuance from  June 18, 2024, through December 18, 2024, of  

service provided Imperial Towing Transport, LLC under CPCN 7546, and if denied, Staff’s  
recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as  to why the CPCN should not be  revoked. Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 
EXPIRED TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE  

 
87.  Docket 23-06015 The  expired temporary discontinuance granted from June 7, 2023, through June 1, 

2024, of services  provided  by Mort's Auto Body, Inc., under  7138, Sub 2, and Staff’s  recommendation to 
issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Item  removed from the Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

PETITION TO DEVIATE  
 

88.  Docket 24-04035 The Petition to deviate  from NAC 706.1389.1, NAC 706.406.4, and NAC 706.4467.4 
by J  & N Enterprises, LLC  d/b/a Silver State Towing of Northern Nevada, Silver  State Towing CPCN  
7183.2. Staff investigation concluded.  
Item  removed from the Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION  

89.  Docket 21-07010 Petition for Reconsideration from Brent A. Carson, Esq. for  reconsideration of  order  
granting Medlife’s  late filed PLTI.    
Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of Medical Transport USA (MTC)  and offered a lengthy  statement  
giving his reasoning why the PLTI should not be granted and stated the Applicant would agree  to amend 
the application to include only 6 contracts.  Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of  Medlife  
and offered the reasoning why the PLTI should stand as written and also recommended the Authority refer  
the  Application back to staff  for  staff  for submission to the Attorney General  for  investigation into possible  
unfair trade practice.   A discussion ensued to clarify  the Petition and possible action.   
Motion by Gibbons  to Deny the Reconsideration   Second Groover   
A discussion ensued with respect to the possible  limitations of an Intervenor and their  participation in the  
Application process.   
A short recess was taken for the Commissioners to confer individually with the Administrative Attorney.  
Ms. Rushton indicated that,  as  an Intervenor, they would likely  question contract  vs. common carrier, the  
number  of contracts in  excess of 6 and  the possible  monopoly  and the  effect this would have on the NEMT  
community.   
Petition for Reconsideration Denied 2-1 Hartung opposed  
 

90.  Docket 24-06008 Petition for Reconsideration from 24/7 Towing, Inc. for  reconsideration of  revocation of  
CPCN 7119 at  May 30, 2024 General Session.  
Kenneth Eady, owner, appeared and detailed his request. Applications Manager Liz Babcock  
indicated the information provided was correct  



Motion by Gibbons   Second Groover    Petition Granted 3-0 
 

PETITION FOR ADVISORY OPINION  
91.  Docket 24-06016 The  request of Copart, Inc. for an advisory opinion regarding “Copart’s  transportation of  

vehicles to and from auction utilizing Copart’s Catastrophe Response Fleet  does  not require  a certificate  of  
public convenience and necessity”.    
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

MOTION TO EXTEND COMPLIANCE PERIOD  
 

92.  Docket 22-12015 The  motion to extend the compliance period to November 11, 2024, for the application 
of Messiah’s Towing, LLC  d/b/a Messiah’s Towing (RDG). Staff  investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed the request and indicated staff is not in support in 
principal.   
Motion by Groover to extend compliance for 60 days Second Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 

EXEMPTION REQUESTS  
 

93.  Docket 24-04011 360 Trop, LLC d/b/a Wingnutz Tavern seeks  a declaration of  exemption pursuant  to 
NAC 706.147 from the requirement  to obtain a CPCN  to provide intrastate commercial passenger  
transportation in Nevada. Staff investigation concluded.  
Guz Mota appeared on behalf of 360 Trop, LLC and detailed his request.  Applications  Manager Liz  
Babcock explained the  transportation can only be to/from the  tavern.  A discussion ensued.   
Motion to deny by Groover   Second Gibbons  
A discussion ensued – motion rescinded  
Motion by Groover  to table Item  to the next subsequent Agenda Second Gibbons    
Item tabled  3-0  
 

94.  Docket 24-05042 Sling Me Vegas, LLC seeks a declaration of  exemption pursuant to NAC 706.147 from  
the requirement to obtain a CPCN  to provide intrastate commercial passenger transportation in Nevada. 
Staff  investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz  Babcock explained the  transportation and indicated staff  support.  
Motion by Gibbons    Second Groover    Approved 3-0 
 

NAME CHANGES  
 

95.  Docket 24-05001 The Request  for name change for the previously approved Application of Golden Buck 
Transportation, LLC  d/b/a  GBT to Golden Buck Transportation, LLC d/b/a Golden Buck Towing, GBT for  
a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow  car service by tow car vehicle 
within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   
Applications Manager Liz  Babcock stated they currently  operate  under CPCN 7590 and that  staff is in 
support.  
Motion by Groover   Second Gibbons Approved 3-0 
 

PETITION FOR LOGO APPROVAL  
 

96.  Docket 24-06017 The Request  of EmpireLV, LLC d/b/a EmpireLV for  final  approval of a logo  for services 
conducted under CPCN 1054 Sub 5. Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   
Applications Manager Liz  Babcock stated support for the larger logo only. 
Motion Groover Second  Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 

APPLICATIONS FOR VAN POOL  
 

97.  Docket 24-05034 The Application of  JT4, LLC for an Employer Van Pool Permit.  Staff  investigation  
concluded.  



Applications Manager Liz  Babcock detailed the  van pool process and that staff  is in support.   
Motion by Gibbons   Second Groover    Approved 3-0 
 

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS  
Items 98 through 101 were considered collectively. 
Motion by Groover   Second Gibbons    Approved 3-0 
 

98.  Docket 24-04025 The  voluntary cancellation of Integrity Taxi special  services  authority granted under  
CPCN 1121.  Staff  investigation concluded. – FOR POSSIBLE ACTION   
 

99.  Docket 24-05010 The  voluntary cancellation of Luxury Ground Transportation, LLC d/b/a LGT CPCN  
2283. Staff investigation concluded.  

 
100.  Docket 24-05014 The  voluntary cancellation of DCT Express, Inc. d/b/a DCT Express CPCN 6156. Staff  

investigation concluded.  
 

101.  Docket 24-05039 The  voluntary cancellation of Care  Towing, LLC d/b/a Care Tow CPCN 7589. Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 
ORDERS TO SHOW CAUSE  

 Items 102 through 105 to be tabled to October General Session 
 Motion to table by Gibbons  Second by Groover  Approved to table 3-0  
 

102.  Docket 24-03017 Order to Show  Cause issued to Airport Mini Bus, a Series of Platinum LV  
Transportation, LLC  d/b/a Airport  Mini Bus as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity  
2350, Sub 9 should not be revoked.  
 

103.  Docket 24-03018 Order to Show  Cause issued to Bell  Limousine, a Series  of Platinum LV Transportation, 
LLC d/b/a Bell Limousine  as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 1217, Sub 3 should 
not  be revoked.  
 

104.  Docket 24-05052  Order to Show  Cause issued to Celebrity Coaches, A   Series of Platinum  LV  
Transportation d/b/a Celebrity Coaches as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 2105  
Sub 1, should not be revoked.  
 

105.  Docket 24-05053  Order  to  Show Cause issued  to Whittelsea Checker Taxi,  a Series of Platinum LV  
Transportation, LLC  d/b/a Whittlesea Checker Taxi as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and  
Necessity 2118, Sub 5, should not be  revoked.  
 

APPLICATIONS TO DISMISS  
Items 109 through 112, with the exception of Items 106 and 107, were considered collectively.  
Motion by Groover   Second Gibbons    Approved 3-0 

 
106.  Docket 20-09009 The Application of Passion Transportation, LLC  for a CPCN to provide charter bus  

service within the State of  Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss  Application.  
Brent Carson, Esq appeared with  Asnake  Dinku, Applicant.  Mr. Dinku  requested  an additional six months  
as he had personal issues  that prevented him  from completing the Application.   
Motion by Gibbons  to table for 90 days to allow Applicant to finish compliance and begin operations or  
they will withdraw the application   Second Groover   Approved 3-0  
  

107.  Docket 21-11023 The Application of  M Executive Coach, LLC for a CPCN to provide  charter bus service  
within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s  Motion to Dismiss Application.  
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

108.  Docket 21-12007 The Application of  Matt's Limo Company, LLC for a CPCN  to provide charter bus  
service within the State of  Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss  Application.  



Applications Manager Liz  Babcock stated the application has been open for two years.  Brent Carson, Esq. 
appeared on behalf of the Applicant and requested an additional 90 days.  
Motion by Gibbons  to table for 90 days to allow Applicant to finish compliance and begin operations or  
they will withdraw the application   Second Groover  Approved 3-0  
 

109.  Docket 21-12019 The Application of Ty Transportation, LLC d/b/a  Marathon Party Bus for a CPCN to 
provide charter bus  service  within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s  Motion to Dismiss  
Application.  

 
110.  Docket 22-02031 The Application of Tony Life, LLC  for a CPCN to provide charter bus service within the  

State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s  Motion to Dismiss Application.  
 

111.  Docket 22-04026 The Application of Sanzy.RB, LLC  for a CPCN to provide charter bus service within the  
State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s  Motion to Dismiss Application.  
 

112.  Docket 22-05025 The Application of Grande Transportation, LLC d/b/a Grande Transportation, V  & E  
Transportation, Last A's Transportation for a CPCN  to provide charter bus service within the State of  
Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss  Application.  

 
113.  Docket 22-05027 The Application of Kiara Limousine Service, LLC d/b/a KLS for a CPCN to provide 

charter bus  service within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s  Motion to Dismiss Application.  
Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant and requested an additional 90 days.  
Motion by Groover to table for 90 days to allow Applicant to finish compliance and begin operations or  
they will withdraw the application   Second Gibbons   Approved 3-0  
 

114.  Docket 22-06017 The Application of Empire Transportation, LLC d/b/a Empire Transportation, Empire  
LV, Empire  for  a CPCN to provide charter bus  service  within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s  
Motion to Dismiss Application.  
Aly Doumbia appeared on behalf of the Applicant and requested additional time to complete  
compliances.  A discussion ensued.  
Motion by Groover  to table for 6 months  to allow Applicant  to change  the fictitious firm name, finish the  
compliances and begin operations  
Second Gibbons   Approved 3-0  
 

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS  
(Closed sessions may be held for items 115 through 116 to consider character, alleged  
misconduct, professional competence, and physical or mental health pursuant to NRS 
241.030.)  

 
115.  Permit 12562 The Authority will determine whether  to grant the application of Scott Collier for issuance  

of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff  investigation concluded.  
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.   
 

116.  Permit 15752 The Authority will determine whether  to grant the application of  John Gardner  for  issuance  
of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff  investigation concluded.  
Motion by Groover  Second by Gibbons  
Permit tabled to the next  subsequent Agenda 3-0  
 

117.  Public Comment   
Camilla Sparks, Quality Towing, stated they were given a warning for NRS 706,4477(2), 
regarding agreements with apartment  complexes  to tow immediately from fire lanes.  She states  
that NAC 706.427 (7)(b)  states if the  property owner requests tow from a red  zone, they can tow  
the vehicle.  She asked if  the verbiage “red zone”  is added to the immediate tow agreement or  they 
put a sign up in the complex stating immediate tow, can they perform the tow? 
 

118.  Adjournment  

https://Sanzy.RB


  
 

Meeting adjourned at 3:00 
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